
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Hilda L. Solis 
First District 

    Holly J. Mitchell 
Second District 
Sheila Kuehl 
Third District 
Janice Hahn 
Fourth District 

Kathryn Barger 
Fifth District 

 
COMMISSIONERS 

Captain Brian S. Bixler 
Peace Officers Association of LA County 

Diego Caivano, M.D. 
LA County Medical Association 

Erick H. Cheung, M.D. 
Southern CA Psychiatric Society 

Chief Eugene Harris 
Los Angeles County Police Chiefs’ Assn. 

John Hisserich, Dr.PH. 
Public Member (3rd District) 

Lydia Lam, M.D. 
American College of Surgeons 
James Lott, PsyD., MBA 
Public Member (2nd District) 

Carol Meyer, RN 
Public Member (4th District) 

Gloria Molleda 
League of Calif. Cities/LA County Division 

Garry Olney, DNP 
Hospital Association of Southern CA 

Robert Ower, RN 
LA County Ambulance Association  

Chief Kenneth Powell 
Los Angeles Area Fire Chiefs Association 
Mr. Paul S. Rodriguez – Chairman 

CA State Firefighters’ Association 
Mr. Jeffrey Rollman 

Southern California Public Health Assn. 
Mr. Joe Salas – Vice Chair 
Public Member (1st District) 

Nerses Sanossian, MD, FAHA 
American Heart Association 

Western States Affiliate 
Carole A. Snyder, RN 

Emergency Nurses Association 
Atilla Uner, MD, MPH 

California Chapter-American College of 
Emergency Physicians (CAL-ACEP) 

Mr. Gary Washburn 
Public Member (5th District) 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

Cathy Chidester 
(562) 378-1604 

CChidester@dhs.lacounty.gov 
 

COMMISSION LIAISON 
Denise Watson 

(562) 378-1606 
DWatson@dhs.lacounty.gov 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES COMMISSION 

10100 Pioneer Boulevard, Suite 200, Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 
(562) 378-1604   FAX (562) 941-5835 

http://ems.dhs.lacounty.gov 
 
DATE: May 19, 2021 
TIME: 1:00 – 3:00 PM 
LOCATION: Zoom Video Conference Meeting 

Join Zoom Meeting:  
https://zoom.us/j/97565380793?pwd=L1dhaUVybnMyK2tiZE95Q29jK3RDdz09 
  Meeting ID: 975 6538 0793 
  Passcode: 991629 
 One tap mobile 
  +16699009128,,97565380793# US (San Jose) 
  +13462487799,,97565380793# US (Houston) 

Dial by your location (Use any number) 
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

The Commission meetings are open to the public. You may address the Commission 
on any agenda item before or during consideration of that item, and on other items 
of interest which are not on the agenda, but which are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Commission. Public comment is limited to three 
(3) minutes and may be extended by Commission Chair as time permits. 

NOTE: Please INPUT YOUR NAME if you would like to address the Commission. 

AGENDA 
I. CALL TO ORDER – Chairman Paul Rodriguez 

Instructions for Zoom: 
1) Please use your computer to join the Zoom meeting to see documents. 
2) Join Zoom meeting by computer (preferable) or phone. 
3) Input your name when you first join so we know who you are. 
4) You can join Zoom by one tap mobile dialing. 
5) Join meeting by landline using any of the “dial by location” numbers and 

manually entering the Meeting ID and following # prompts. 
6) Mute and unmute yourself by clicking on the microphone icon at the 

bottom of computer screen, or *6 by phone. 
7) Volume is adjusted by using the little arrow next to the microphone icon. 

II. INTRODUCTIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS/PRESENTATIONS 
III. CONSENT AGENDA (Commissioners/Public may request that an item be 

held for discussion.  All matters are approved by one motion unless held.) 

1. MINUTES 
March 17, 2021 

2. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
2.1 Base Hospital Advisory Committee 
2.2 Data Advisory Committee 
2.3 Provider Agency Advisory Committee 

 
3. POLICIES 

No policies for review. 
 

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 

mailto:CChidester@dhs.lacounty.gov
mailto:DWatson@dhs.lacounty.gov
http://ems.dhs.lacounty.gov/
https://zoom.us/j/97565380793?pwd=L1dhaUVybnMyK2tiZE95Q29jK3RDdz09


EMS Commission 
May 19, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

   

 
 

IV. BUSINESS 
BUSINESS (OLD) 
4.1 Prehospital Care of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Emergencies  

 4.1.1 Ad Hoc Workgroup on the Pre-Hospital Care of Mental Health and Substance  
    Abuse Emergencies – Recommendation Eight 

4.2 Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT) 
4.3 LA County COVID-19 Modeling – EMS Agency Data 
4.4 EMS Update 
 
BUSINESS (NEW) 
4.5 EMS Commission Membership – Vote Required 

4.5.1 Paramedic Representation – California State Firefighters Association (CSFA) to 
  California Professional Firefighters (CPF) 
4.5.2 American Heart Association Representation 

 
V. LEGISLATION 

 
VI. EMS DIRECTOR’S AND MEDICAL DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

CORRESPONDENCE 
6.1 (03-01-2021) Angela Wise, EMS Authority: EMS System Plan Update FY 2019-20 
6.2 (03-15-2021) Chris Gordon, AMR-Inland Empire: Temporary Approval of AMR Inland 

Empire ALS Unit to Provide Standby ALS Coverage at State Vaccination Site 
6.3 (03-10-2021) Distribution:  COVID-19 EMS Directive #3 – Suspension of Service Area 

Boundaries 
6.4 (03-15-2021) Assembly Member Freddie Rodriguez: EMS and COVID-19 Vaccination 

Issues 
6.5 (03-15-2021) James R. West: Good Samaritan Hospital Service Area Boundaries and 

Ambulance Patient Offload Times 
6.6 (03-15-2021) Distribution: Submission of Measure B Funding Proposals for 2021 
6.7 (03-16-2021) Distribution: Sidewalk “Hands-Only” CPR 
6.8 (04-09-2021) Distribution: General Public Ambulance Rates July 1, 2021 through June 30, 

2022 
6.9 (04-15-2021) Distribution: Pacific Gardens Medical Center 9-1-1 Receiving Hospital 

Designation 
 

VII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS / REQUESTS 
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
To the meeting of July 21, 2021 



 

 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES COMMISSION 
10100 Pioneer Boulevard, Suite 200, Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 

(562) 378-1604   FAX (562) 941-5835 
http://ems.dhs.lacounty.gov/ 

 
MINUTES 

MARCH 17, 2021 
Zoom Meeting  

      (Ab) = Absent; (*) = Excused Absence 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
The Emergency Medical Services Commission (EMSC) meeting was held via Zoom 
Video Communications Conference Call due to the California Statewide Safer at 
Home Order related to the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. The meeting was 
called to order at 1:02 p.m. by Chairman Paul Rodriguez.  A quorum was present with 
17 Commissioners on the call.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
LOS ANGELES COUNTY  

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Hilda L. Solis 

First District 
Holly J. Mitchell 

Second District 
Sheila Kuehl 

Third District 
Janice Hahn 
Fourth District 

Kathryn Barger 
Fifth District 

 
COMMISSIONERS 

Captain Brian S. Bixler 
Peace Officers Association of LA County 

Diego Caivano, M.D. 
LA County Medical Association 

Erick H. Cheung, M.D. 
Southern CA Psychiatric Society 

Chief Eugene Harris 
Los Angeles County Police Chiefs’ Assn. 

John Hisserich, Dr.PH. 
Public Member (3rd District) 

Lydia Lam, M.D. 
American College of Surgeons 
James Lott, PsyD., MBA 
Public Member (2nd District) 

Carol Meyer, RN 
Public Member (4th District) 

Ms. Gloria Molleda 
League of Calif. Cities/LA County Division 

Garry Olney, DNP 
Hospital Association of Southern CA 

Robert Ower, RN 
LA County Ambulance Association 

Chief Kenneth Powell 
Los Angeles Area Fire Chiefs Association 
Mr. Paul S. Rodriguez – Chairman 

CA State Firefighters’ Association 
Mr. Jeffrey Rollman 

Southern California Public Health Assn. 
Mr. Joe Salas – Vice Chair 
Public Member (1st District) 

Nerses Sanossian, MD, FAHA 
American Heart Association 

Western States Affiliate 
Carole A. Snyder, RN  

Emergency Nurses Association 
Atilla Uner, MD, MPH 

California Chapter-American College of 
Emergency Physicians (CAL-ACEP) 

Mr. Gary Washburn 
Public Member (5th District) 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

Cathy Chidester 
(562) 378-1604 

CChidester@dhs.lacounty.gov 
 

COMMISSION LIAISON 
Denise Watson 
 (562) 378-1606 

DWatson@dhs.lacounty.gov 

☒ Lt. Brian S. Bixler Peace Officers’ Assn. of LAC Cathy Chidester Executive Director 

☒ Diego Caivano, M.D. L.A. County Medical Assn. Denise Watson Commission Liaison 

☒ Erick H. Cheung, M.D. So. CA Psychiatric Society Marianne Gausche-
Hill 

EMS Medical Director 

☒ Chief Eugene Harris  LAC Police Chiefs’ Assn. Nichole Bosson Asst. Medical Director 

☒ John Hisserich, Dr.PH  Public Member, 3rd District Roel Amara Assistant Director 

☒ Lydia Lam, M.D. So. CA Chapter American 
College of Surgeons 

Richard Tadeo Assistant Director 

☒ James Lott, PsyD, MBA  Public Member, 2nd District  Kay Fruhwirth Nursing Director 

☒ Carol Meyer, RN Public Member, 4th District John Telmos 
 

EMS Staff 
 

☐ *Gloria Molleda League of CA Cities/LA 
County 

Michelle Williams 
 

EMS Staff 

☒ Robert Ower, RN LAC Ambulance Association  Sara Rasnake 
 

EMS Staff 

☒ Garry Olney, DNP Hospital Assn. of So. CA Denise Whitfield 
 

EMS Staff 

☒ Kenneth Powell LA Area Fire Chiefs’ Assn. Christine Clare 
 

EMS Staff 
 

☒ Paul S. Rodriguez CA State Firefighters’ Assn. 
 

Jacqueline Rifenburg 
 

EMS Staff 
 

☒ Jeffrey Rollman So. CA Public Health Assn. David Wells 
 

EMS Staff 
 

☒ Joseph Salas Public Member, 1st District Cathlyn Jennings EMS Staff 
 

☒ Nerses Sanossian, M.D. 
 
☒ Carole A, Snyder, RN 

American Heart Association 
 
Emergency Nurses Assn. 

Christine Zaiser 
 
Gary Watson 

EMS Staff  
 
EMS Staff 
 

☒ Atilla Uner, M.D., MPH 
 

American College of 
Emergency Physicians    
CAL-ACEP 
 

Christy Preston 
 
Lorrie Perez 
 

EMS Staff 
 
EMS Staff 

☐ *Gary Washburn Public Member, 5th District 
 

Adrian Romero EMS Staff 

 
 

 
 
 

Susan Mori EMS Staff 

GUESTS 
 

Clayton Kazan, MD LA County Fire Department  Jennifer Nulty Torrance Fire Dept. 

Jaime Garcia Hospital Assn. Southern Cal. Shelly Trites Torrance Memorial 

John Franklin Sierra DMH Lt. John Gannon LASD 
Samantha Verga Gates    

    
    

http://ems.dhs.lacounty.gov/
mailto:CChidester@dhs.lacounty.gov
mailto:DWatson@dhs.lacounty.gov


MINUTES 
EMS Commission 

March 17, 2021 

2 

 

 
  
 

II. INTRODUCTIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS/PRESENTATIONS 
Executive Director Cathy Chidester did roll call of the Commissioners, acknowledged members 
of the public and EMS Agency staff. General Instructions on using Zoom were provided to 
participants.  Commissioners were asked to state their names when making a motion/second to 
ensure the accurate reporting. 
 
Chairman Rodriguez announced and congratulated Commissioner Atilla Uner on his appointment 
as Chairman of the State EMS Commission for 2021. 
 
III. CONSENT AGENDA 
Chairman Rodriguez called for approval of the Consent Agenda and opened the floor for 
discussion.   
 
Motion/Second by Commissioners Bixler/Meyer to approve the Consent Agenda was 
approved and carried unanimously.   
 
Ms. Chidester requested to move Correspondence from the Consent Agenda and include it in the 
Director’s Report, as this is information only and requires no approval; move the Director’s Report 
up higher on the Agenda and rename it EMS Director’s and Medical Director’s Report.  
 
Motion/Second by Commissioners Ower/Hisserich to move Correspondence from the 
Consent Agenda and include it in the Director’s Report; move the Director’s Report up 
higher on the Agenda and rename it EMS Director’s and Medical Director’s Report was 
approved and carried unanimously. 
 
1. MINUTES 

January 20, 2021 Minutes were approved. 
 

2. CORRESPONDENCE  
2.1  (01-12-21) Distribution:  Shoring Up for the Surge of COVID-19 patients 
2.2  (01-21-21) Martin Serna:  Paramedic Vaccination Program Approval 
2.3  (02-22-21) Stephen Albrecht:  Psychiatric Urgent Care Center Designation (Star 

Behavioral Health - City of Industry) 
2.4    (02-22-21) Stephen Albrecht:  Psychiatric Urgent Care Center Designation (Star 

Behavioral Health - Long Beach) 
2.5    (03-15-21) Distribution:  Submission of Measure B Funding Proposal for 2021 

 
3. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

3.1  Base Hospital Advisory Committee   
3.2  Data Advisory Committee  
3.3  Provider Agency Advisory Committee  

 
4. POLICIES 

4.1  Reference No. 218:  Trauma Hospital Advisory Committee (THAC)    
4.2    Reference No. 222:  Downgrade or Closure of 9-1-1 Receiving Hospital or Emergency 

Medical Services (Attachments:  AB 2037 and All Facilities Letter from CDPH) 
4.3    Reference No. 508:  Sexual Assault Patient Destination   
4.4    Reference No. 606:  Documentation of Prehospital Care 
4.5 Reference No. 814:  Determination / Pronouncement of Death in the Field 
4.6 Reference No. 834:  Patient Refusal of Treatment/Transport and Treat and Release at 

Scene 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 



MINUTES 
EMS Commission 

March 17, 2021 

3 

 

 
  
 

IV. BUSINESS 
 

BUSINESS (OLD) 
5.1 Prehospital Care of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Emergencies 

5.1.1 Ad Hoc Workgroup on the Pre-Hospital Care of Mental Health and Substance 
Abuse Emergencies – Recommendation Eight  
Ms. Chidester provided background on the Prehospital Care of Mental Health 
and Substance Abuse Emergencies report that the EMSC published in 2015 
and how this work was groundbreaking and is now informing the work the 
Department of Mental Health (DMH) is doing.  She noted that DMH has 
established three ad hoc groups to address the interface of law enforcement 
and mental health. 
 

5.1.2 John Franklin Sierra, Ph.D., Senior Staff Analyst, LA County Department of 
Mental Health – Process Overview   

  John Franklin Sierra from DMH and Lieutenant John Gannon from the                  
Los Angeles Sheriff’s Department (LASD) gave presentations on the work that 
DMH is doing and how this relates to prehospital care of mental health and 
substance abuse emergencies.  

 
Mr. Sierra discussed DMH’s response to a Board motion to address the 
individual 9-1-1 crisis calls and how best to coordinate care between entities 
and provide the most appropriate response to either mental health psychiatric 
urgent care centers or sobering centers, and to provide alternatives to 
hospitalization or incarceration.   
 
He also reported that the adoption by the Federal Communications 
Commission of the 9-8-8 number for suicide emergencies is scheduled to go 
live by the middle of 2022, and this would change how these calls are routed 
as they will go directly into the National Suicide Hotline, therefore possibly 
reducing 9-1-1 calls for mental health issues.  Currently, Didi Hirsch is the only 
National Suicide Prevention Hotline in the County. 
 
Lieutenant John Gannon reported on the work he is doing to develop 
standardized dispatch protocols, and the need for a set of uniform standards 
for law enforcement agencies countywide during the early screening process 
to ensure proper dispatch handling.  He presented a draft matrix that the DMH 
committee is working on to create uniform language for linkage between 
various agencies, as well as to determine which agency is appropriate to 
respond to behavioral health calls into 9-1-1/9-8-8.  Work is being done to 
create direct linkage between 9-1-1 and 9-8-8 that will allow agencies to 
transfer calls between facilities in real time. 
 
Commissioner Brian Bixler reported positive responses related to the pilot 
project where Los Angeles Police Department is diverting 9-1-1 calls from 
suicidal persons to Didi Hirsch, reducing law enforcement involvement on calls 
that require behavioral health assistance only. 
 
Commissioner Erick Cheung commented that success of these initiatives is 
reliant upon hospital-to-hospital communication, and access to health 
information exchange is essential to better understand the care of patients 
between facilities and where patients have established their care.   
 



MINUTES 
EMS Commission 

March 17, 2021 

4 

 

 
  
 

5.2 Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT) 
Mr. Tadeo, EMS Assistant Director, reported that APOT times are low, and this 
translates into very low diversion time.  The plan is to revise the diversion policy, 
maintaining BLS diversion capability to be incorporated as part of ReddiNet.  Provider 
agencies can continue to request diversion when multiple units are waiting to offload 
patients at a hospital.  The policy drafts will be presented to Base, Provider and the 
Hospital Association of Southern California (HASC) for input, and will be brought back 
to the Commission at the May 2020 EMS Commission meeting. 
 
Chairman Rodriguez reported that the State EMS Commission will be establishing an 
APOT task force to look at APOT on a State level. 
 

5.3 LA County COVID-19 Modeling – EMS Agency Data 
Dr. Gausche-Hill reported on the latest COVID-19 modeling and reviewed data related 
COVID-19.  Key points from the presentation included: 
 

• The modeling tries to predict where we will be in the future.  The Effective 
Transmission Number “R” is still below one (<1), and once we get above one 
(>1) we are in a surge or have the potential for more widespread outbreak.  

 
• Cardiac arrests have increased the entire time of the pandemic.  The Coroner 

has seen an increase in substance abuse deaths which may present as cardiac 
arrests.  Traumatic injuries initially declined and then we saw an increase in 
trauma.  

 
• With COVID-19-related provider impressions, there was an overall decrease in 

number of runs until we had the significant surge in December 2020 and 
January 2021.   

 
• Hospital capacity data was also shared.  During the December 2020 - January 

2021 surge, over 50% of all patients admitted to hospitals were COVID-19 
positive with over 90% patients in the ICU being COVID-19 positive.  Ventilator 
use saw marked uptick in this period as well, but no one ran out of ventilators, 
and over 400 ventilators were deployed to hospitals in this timeframe which also 
could be used to deliver hi-flow O2 by nasal cannula. 

 
• Hospital bed demand is way down almost at the lowest level ever during the 

pandemic with around 500 COVID-19 hospitalizations.  We have been able to 
meet the beds needed, but hospitals surged into tents and other non-traditional 
patient-care areas to meet the need during the recent surge.  The peak 
hospitalizations were over 8,000 and the date of the peak was January 6, 2021.  

 
Following the presentation, there was a brief discussion about lessons learned 
throughout the pandemic.  The expansion of care utilizing nurses and paramedics, non-
traditional space for patient care, clinical spaces being expanded to ICU, and utilizing 
outside tents helped in terms of triage.  Working with fire departments and medical 
directors with creative solutions provided additional resources for hospitals and EMS. 
The California Department of Public Health is asking hospitals for their best practices 
and lessons learned.  HASC is looking to engage a consultant to work with hospitals 
and conduct the After-Action Report. 
 
 



MINUTES 
EMS Commission 

March 17, 2021 

5 

 

 
  
 

5.4 Olympia Medical Center ED Closure – Impact Evaluation Report – February 24, 2021 
(Control + Click to follow link below to view report) 
http://file.lacounty.gov/SDSInter/dhs/1103517_CDPHNotification2021-02-24.pdf  
Mr. Tadeo reported that notice was issued on Monday, March 15, 2021, to stop 9-1-1 
traffic as of Wednesday, March 24, 2021.  All walk-in traffic will stop as of Tuesday, 
March 30, 2021.  The Impact Evaluation Report (IER) was forwarded to the Los Angeles 
County Board of Supervisors.  
 

BUSINESS (NEW) 
5.5 EMS Commission Representative to the Measure B Advisory Board 

Ms. Chidester provided background on the Measure B Advisory Board (MBAB), which 
was established to make recommendations to the County Board of Supervisors on how 
to use/allocate unallocated Measure B funds.  The EMS Commission representative on 
the MBAB is the Chair or their designee.  Since the EMS Commission has a new chair, 
Commissioners need to approve a new MBAB representative.   
 
Motion/Second by Commissioners Hisserich/Salas to appoint Chairman Paul 
Rodriguez to represent the EMS Commission on the MBAB was made.  
Commissioner Carol Meyer requested to represent the EMS Commission on the 
MBAB stating prior experience and subject matter knowledge.  Chairman 
Rodriguez respectfully declined appointment and made a new motion. 
 
Motion/Second by Chairman Rodriguez/Commissioner Snyder to appoint 
Commissioner Meyer to represent the EMS Commission on the MBAB was made.  
Commissioner Salas requested to amend the motion to include Chairman 
Rodriguez as alternate.  Chairman Rodriguez accepted. 
 
Motion/Second to appoint Chairman Paul Rodriguez to represent the EMS 
Commission on the MBAB was rescinded by Commissioners Hisserich/Salas. 
 
Motion/Second by Commissioners Salas/Lott to appoint Commissioner Meyer to 
represent the EMS Commission on the MBAB with Chairman Rodriguez as 
alternate was approved and carried unanimously.  
 

5.6 Measure B Advisory Board Proposal Submission 2021 
Kay Fruhwirth, EMS Agency Nursing Director, provided an overview of the MBAB 
process, and reported project proposal documents will be provided to Commissioners.  
The Commissioners were asked to share these with their constituent groups they 
represent to ensure widespread distribution of the documents and participation in the 
MBAB process. 
 

V. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS / REQUESTS 
Commissioner Garry Olney inquired about in-patient and ER experience scores, noting both 
scores have been impacted by the pandemic.  He will inquire into whether or not Medicare is 
taking that into consideration and bring a response back to the Commission. 
 

VI. LEGISLATION 
Ms. Chidester provided highlights of the following bills:  
AB 7 - Subsidizes personal protective equipment for the ambulance employees to purchase 
PPE, particularly multi-threat body protective gear. 
AB 261 - Authorizes emergency vehicles to operate in HOV lanes. 
AB 3389 – Allows RFP contracting for ambulance. Allows fire departments to subcontract for 
emergency ambulance services. 

http://file.lacounty.gov/SDSInter/dhs/1103517_CDPHNotification2021-02-24.pdf


MINUTES 
EMS Commission 

March 17, 2021 

6 

 

 
  
 

AB 805 – PPE distribution reporting for the MHOAC. 
AB 988 – Allows 9-8-8 as a mental health crisis hotline. 
AB 1229 – Emergency task force to review APOT and EMS Authority. 
AB 1254 – Healthcare coverage of mobile stroke units. 
 

VII. EMS DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
1. The EMS Agency did a video for Sidewalk CPR.  The annual event was cancelled due to 

the pandemic. 
 

2.  EMS Agency is demobilizing a lot of equipment sent out during COVID-19.  
 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT: 

Adjournment by Chairman Rodriguez at 2:45 pm to the meeting of May 19, 2021. 
 
Motion/Second by Commissioners Cheung/Snyder to adjourn to the meeting of 
Wednesday, May 19, 2021, was approved and carried unanimously. 
 
    Next Meeting:  Wednesday, May 19, 2021, 1:00-3:00pm 
              Join by Zoom Video Conference Call 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/97565380793?pwd=L1dhaUVybnMyK2tiZE95Q29jK3RDdz09 
Meeting ID: 975 6538 0793 
Passcode: 991629 
 
One tap mobile 
+16699009128,,97565380793# US (San Jose) 
+13462487799,,97565380793# US (Houston) 
  
Dial by your location 
        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recorded by: 
Denise Watson 
Secretary, Health Services Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lobbyist Registration:  Any person or entity who seeks support or endorsement from the EMS Commission on official action must 
certify that they are familiar with the requirements of Ordinance No. 93-0031.  Persons not in compliance with the requirements of the 
Ordinance shall be denied the right to address the Commission for such period of time as the non-compliance exists. 

https://zoom.us/j/97565380793?pwd=L1dhaUVybnMyK2tiZE95Q29jK3RDdz09


Base Hospital Advisory Committee April 14, 2021 
Page 1 of 4 

County of Los Angeles • Department of Health Services 
Emergency Medical Services Agency 

BASE HOSPITAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
MINUTES 

April 14, 2021 

MEMBERSHIP / ATTENDANCE 
VIA ZOOM 

REPRESENTATIVES EMS AGENCY STAFF 
 Carol Meyer., Chair EMS Commission Dr. Marianne Gausche-Hill 
 Carole Snyder, RN., Vice Chair EMS Commission Dr. Nichole Bosson 
 Atilla Uner, MD, MPH EMS Commission Richard Tadeo 
 Lydia, Lam, MD EMS Commission Christine Clare 
 Diego Caivano, MD EMS Commission Dr. Dipesh Patel 
 Erick Cheung, MD EMS Commission Jackie Rifenburg 
 Garry Olney EMS Commission John Telmos 
 Rachel Caffey Northern Region Christy Preston 
 Melissa Carter Northern Region Cathy Jennings 
 Charlene Tamparong Northern Region, Alternate Susan Mori 
 Samantha Verga-Gates Southern Region Karen Rodgers 
 Laurie Donegan Southern Region Sara Rasnake 
 Shelly Trites Southern Region Fritz Bottger 
 Christine Farnham, APCC President Southern Region, Alternate Gary Watson  
 Paula Rosenfield Western Region David Wells  
 Ryan Burgess Western Region Dr. Denise Whitfield 
 Susana Sanchez Western Region, Alternate Christine Zaiser 
 Erin Munde Western Region, Alternate Natalie Greco 
 Laurie Sepke Eastern Region 
 Alina Candal Eastern Region GUESTS 
 Jenny Van Slyke Eastern Region, Alternate  John Hisserich, Commissioner PACC 
 Lila Mier County Hospital Region Gloria Molleda, Commissioner DAC 
 Emerson Martell County Hospital Region Jim Lott, Commissioner DAC 
 Yvonne Elizarraz County Hospital Region, Alternate Dr. Tyler Leppek, HGH Resident 
 Antoinette Salas County Hospital Region, Alternate  Dr. Saman Kashani, LACoFD 
 Shira Schlesinger, MD Medical Council Representative  Dr. Ashley Sanello, Compton Fire 
 Roger Yang, MD Medical Council Representative, Alt. 
 Alec Miller Provider Agency Advisory Committee 
 Jennifer Nulty Provider Agency Advisory Committee, Alt. 
 Laarni Abdenoja MICN Representative 
 Jennifer Breeher MICN Representative, Alt.  
 Heidi Ruff Pediatric Advisory Committee 
 Michael Natividad Pediatric Advisory Committee, Alt. 

PREHOSPITAL CARE COORDINATORS 
 Jessica Strange (SJS)  Lorna Mendoza (SFM)
 Melissa Turpin (SMM)  Karyn Robinson (GWT)
 Coleen Harkins (AVH)  Erica Candelaria (QVH)

1. CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order at 1:05 P.M. by Carol Meyer, Chairperson.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  The meeting minutes for February 10, 2021, were approved as
submitted.

M/S/C (Burgess/Farnham)

2.1 COMMITTEE REPORTS



Base Hospital Advisory Committee  April 14, 2021 
 

Page 2 of 4 

 
3. INTRODUCTIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 
• Susan Mori:  Out of hospital cardiac arrest is on the rise, Dr. Patel has produced “Hands 

Only CPR” instructional video, https://youtu.be/jHaicno95sk .  Please share the provided 
link.  

• EMSAAC Conference (VIRTUAL) is scheduled for June 2-3, 2021, you can register at 
https://www.emsaac.org/conference. 

• Dr. Gausche-Hill:  National Pediatric Readiness Assessment begins May 1st.  In 
preparation for the survey, we encourage participating hospitals to access the 
assessment tool at www.pedsready.org.   

• Richard Tadeo:  Announced Pacific Gardens Medical Center (TRI) located in Hawaiian 
Gardens has been designated as a 9-1-1 receiving center, effective Monday, April 19, 
2021.  

 
4. REPORTS & UPDATES: 

 
4.1 EMS Update 2021  

 
Train the Trainer is scheduled for Thursday, Apr 29th, 8:00am – 11:00am, 
(https://zoom.us/meeting/register/tJEsceuprj8oGNSQiEOn7udI7SqxFIxNo3), and 
Thursday, May 6th, 8:00am – 11:00am, 
(https://zoom.us/meeting/register/tJMrdOqurj0rHNWuKBdSPF5E8unjw7iVNNoc), trainers 
must preregister by April 16th to allow adequate time to access material, before the 
scheduled training date. 

 
EMS Update topics include:  

• Out of hospital cardiac arrest, including traumatic cardiac arrest, adult & 
pediatrics. 

• Ref. No. 834, Patient Refusal of Treatment or Transport (Treat and Refer). 
• QI modules on the recognition of anaphylaxis and sepsis.  

 
4.2 EmergiPress 

 
The next edition of EmergiPress will be presented at the end of April and will cover 
Medical Control Guideline (MCG) 1337, Leave Behind Naloxone, ECG of the month, and 
a video addressing Mass Casualty Incident (MCI) management.    
 
Please continue to submit feedback and suggestions for future topics to Dr. Denise 
Whitfield at, dwhitfield@dhs.lacounty.gov. 
 

4.3 ECMO Pilot 
 
The ECMO Pilot will resume April 21, 2021.  Participating hospitals include Ronald 
Regan UCLA and Cedars Sinai, participating providers include Beverley Hills Fire, 
Culver City Fire, and specific Los Angeles County Fire Stations (Units in Inglewood 171-
173, Ladera Heights, and West Hollywood).  On May 3, 2021, the Pilot will be expanding 
to include LAC+USC Medical Center and Los Angeles City Fire.   
For qualifying patients, participating providers will bypass the closest STEMI Receiving 
Center (SRC) to transport to an ECMO Receiving Center, as long as the transport time 
is within 30 minutes.  Surrounding SRCs should be minimally impacted. 
 
 

https://youtu.be/jHaicno95sk
https://www.emsaac.org/conference
http://www.pedsready.org/
https://zoom.us/meeting/register/tJEsceuprj8oGNSQiEOn7udI7SqxFIxNo3
https://zoom.us/meeting/register/tJMrdOqurj0rHNWuKBdSPF5E8unjw7iVNNoc
mailto:jrifenburg@dhs.lacounty.gov


Base Hospital Advisory Committee  April 14, 2021 
 

Page 3 of 4 

4.4 Data Collaboratives 
 
SRC Collaborative:  The collaborative has been studying the impact of COVID on STEMI 
and out of hospital cardiac arrests.  It was determined that during the stay at home order, 
out of hospital cardiac arrests increased and the number of STEMI calls decreased. A 
publication has been accepted by the Journal of American Heart Association, once 
published, it will be shared with the group. 
 
Examining trends and impact to specialty centers for the recent COVID surge (December 
2020 – January 2021). 
 
Examining outcomes for: time to intervention of STEMI patients, STEMI outcomes, and 
out of hospital cardiac arrest outcomes. 
 
Stroke Data Collaborative:  Is analyzing effects on volume, patient outcomes, and impact 
projection of a growing two-tiered stroke system. 
 
BEST-MSU Study was presented at the International Stroke Conference 2021, shows 
stroke better outcomes with less disability, faster tPA administration times, and improved 
90-day Modified Rankin Scores. 
 
Pediatrics:  Currently collecting data on out of hospital cardiac arrest in the pediatric 
population, more to come on this topic. 
 
Future pediatric studies: Pedi Dose, Pedi Part, and a study on BRUE. 
  

4.5 Ref. No. 1335, Medial Control Guideline: Needle Thoracostomy 
 
New language (Page 2, Guideline 7) was presented which addresses thoracostomy 
needle placement and insertion depth in the adult patient and the pediatric patient (under 
15 years).  
 

5. OLD BUSINESS: 
 
5.1 Health Data Exchange (HDE) 

 
Update provided by Richard Tadeo:  The HDE project has been temporarily placed on 
hold.  It is estimated that installation/implementation of the data exchange system will 
take an average of 16 weeks and the deadline for funding by the CARES Act Provider 
Relief Fund is June 30, 2021. Although the CARES COVID Relief Fund was extended 
from December 31, 2020 to December 31, 2021, the Provider Relief Fund has not been 
extended.   We will be applying for the American Rescue & Recovery Grant; this is a 
multiyear grant which allows for a longer timeline.  More information to come. 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS: 

   
6.1 MICN – Ride Along 

 
The MICN – Ride Along requirement was waived in early 2020 and remains in effect.  
For those MICNs that wish to, there are departments that are offering ride along 
opportunities, some restrictions may apply. 
 
As a reminder, for MICN renewal, the requirement of 40 hours of Continuing Education 
will continue until further notice.   



Base Hospital Advisory Committee  April 14, 2021 
 

Page 4 of 4 

 
For questions contact Jackie Rifenburg at jrifenburg@dhs.lacounty.gov.  

 
6.2 Ref. No. 503, Guidelines for Hospitals Requesting Diversion of ALS Patients 
 

Approved with recommended change: 
- Page 2, Procedure: B. 1., add verbiage as last line “BLS Diversion requires 

approval by the EMS Agency.” 
 
M/S/C (Donegan/Farnham) 

 
6.3 Ref. No. 503.1, Hospital Diversion Request Requirements for Emergency Department 

Saturation 
 

Approved with recommended change: 
- Page 1, Definitions: requested definition for APOT data source. 
- Page 5, IV. C., add verbiage at beginning “After regional/system analysis,” 
 
M/S/C (Burgess/Candal) 

 
A recommendation was made to develop a Quick Reference Guide to list the various 
Diversion Categories and the time parameters associated with each category. 

 
6.4 Ref. No. 815, Honoring Prehospital Do-Not-Resuscitate (DNR) Orders 

 
Approved as presented. 
 
M/S/C (Van Slyke/Donegan) 
 

6.5 Ref. No. 816, Physician at the Scene 
 

M/S/C (Schlesinger/Burgess) 
 

7. OPEN DISCUSSION:   
 

Dr. Nichole Bosson provided clarification on the ordering/use of nitroglycerin for 
patients experiencing STEMI without chest pain.  As indicated in Ref. No. 1211, 
Cardiac Chest Pain, nitroglycerin is useful in the treatment of chest pain.  For 
patients experiencing STEMI without chest pain, there is no indication for the 
administration of nitroglycerin.  
 

8. NEXT MEETING:  BHAC’s next meeting is scheduled for June 9, 2021, location is to be 
determined. 

 
ACTION:  Meeting notification, agenda, and minutes to be distributed electronically prior 
to the meeting. 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY:  Lorrie Perez 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 2:27 P.M. 

mailto:jrifenburg@dhs.lacounty.gov


Page 1 of 3 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES COMMISSION 
DATA ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

  WEDNESDAY, APRIL 14, 2021 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order at 10:03 am by Commissioner Rollman.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  The minutes of the June 12, 2019 and August 12, 2020 were approved as
written.

3. INTRODUCTIONS/ANNOUCEMENTS

• Jeffrey Rollman is the new Chair for the Data Advisory Committee (DAC) who represents the
Southern California Public Health Association on the EMS Commission.  Commissioner Rollman is a
paramedic who has worked as an EMS provider and educator and is a PhD student who is involved
in research and data.

4. REPORTS & UPDATES

4.1 Service Changes (Sara Rasnake/Richard Tadeo) 

9-1-1 Receiving Facility Closure

Olympia Medical Center closed as of April 1, 2021 

9-1-1 Receiving Facility Opening

Pacific Gardens Medical Center opened during the pandemic as a walk-in Emergency 
Department as a part of the state’s response for a COVID surge hospital and has recently 

MEMBERSHIP / ATTENDANCE 
 MEMBERS   ORGANIZATION  EMS AGENCY 

 Jeffrey Rollman, Chair 

      Joe Salas, Vice Chair 
 Nerses Sanossian 
 Jim Lott 

 Gloria Molleda 
 Gary Washburn 
 Matt Armstrong 
  Kris L. Thomas  

 Christine Farnham 
     Shelly Trites 
 Ryan Burgess 

     Nathan McNeil 
 Don Gerety   
     Brenda Bridwell 

 Sean Stokes 
     VACANT  
 Nicole Steeneken 

    Victoria Hernandez 
 Matthew Potter 
      John Smith 

  Marc Cohen 
     VACANT   
  Daniel Dobbs 

     Ivan Orloff 
 Tchaka Shepherd 
    David Hanpeter 

  Marilyn Cohen 
  Gilda Cruz-Manglapus 

EMS Commissioner (Southern California Public Health Assn.) 

EMS Commissioner (Public Member, 1st District) 
EMS Commissioner (AHA/Western States Affiliate) 
EMS Commissioner (Public Member, 2nd District) 

EMS Commissioner (League of Calif. Cities/LA County Division) 
EMS Commissioner (Public Member, 5th District) 
Ambulance Advisory Board (LACAA) 
Ambulance Advisory Board (alternate) 

Base Hospital Advisory Committee (BHAC) (RN) 
BHAC (alternate) 
Hospital Association of Southern California (HASC) 

HASC (alternate) 
Long Beach Fire Department (LBFD) 
LBFD (alternate) 

Los Angeles Area Fire Chiefs Association 
LA Area Fire Chiefs Association (alternate) 
Los Angeles County Fire Department (LACoFD) 

LACoFD (alternate) 
Los Angeles Fire Department (LAFD) 
LAFD (alternate) 

Medical Council (MD) 
Medical Council (alternate) 
Provider Agency Advisory Committee (PAAC) 

PAAC (alternate) 
Trauma Hospital Advisory Committee (THAC) (MD) 
THAC (MD) (alternate) 

THAC (RN)  
THAC (RN) (alternate) 

Nichole Bosson 

Denise Whitfield 
Richard Tadeo 
Christine Clare 

John Telmos 
Sara Rasnake 
Susan Mori 
Lorrie Perez 

Allen Chang 

 OTHERS 

Doug Zabilski, LAFD 
John Balagatas, LBFD 
Chelsea Davis, LBFD 

   Present *Excused   Absent 

2.2 COMMITTEE REPORTS



Page 2 of 3 
 

been approved to accept ambulance traffic.  On Monday, April 19, 2021, Pacific Gardens 
Medical Center will be designated as a 9-1-1 Receiving Facility.  
 

 Comprehensive Stroke Centers (CSCs) 
 
  The following hospitals are now Comprehensive Stroke Centers: 

• Emanate Health Queen of the Valley, effective February 3, 2021 

• Lakewood Regional Medical Center, effective February 10, 2021 
  

4.2 CF/CI Data Submission (Sara Rasnake) 
 

Los Angeles County Fire Department (CF) transitioned from Stryker to Imagetrend on July 1, 
2020.  As of April 14, 2021, CF has submitted data for the first and second quarter of 2020 
and January-April 2021.  There is a gap on data submission for the third and fourth quarter of 
2020 due to validation errors related to PD on Scene and Provider Impression.   

 
Los Angeles City Fire (CI) is still working with Stryker as their vendor.  As of April 14, 2021, 
CI is current with data submission through June 2020.  CI is having similar issues with 
validation errors and both providers are working with their vendor to resolve the issues. 
 

4.3 Lancet by ESO Health Data Exchange (Richard Tadeo)  
   

The Health Data Exchange (HDE) project, which is a Software as a Service platform 
designed to exchange pdf and native data between the hospitals and EMS providers, was 
presented at the DAC meeting held on August 12, 2020.  The EMS Agency applied and was 
approved to proceed with the project through the CARES Act Provider Relief Fund.  Through 
the multi-layer approval and contracting process, it was deemed that the majority of the 
allocated funds could not be expended by June 30, 2021, the HDE project has been placed 
on hold. The EMS Agency has applied for funding though the American Rescue and 
Recovery Act. The approved projects through this funding source is anticipated to be 
announced by late May or early June.  The committee will be updated on the progress of the 
project at the next meeting. 

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 
 

5.1 Reference No. 606, Documentation of Prehospital Care (Sara Rasnake/Richard Tadeo) 
  
 Information only.  Approved by the EMS Commission on March 17, 2021. 
 
5.2 Prehospital Research Studies (Nichole Bosson, MD) 
 

Dr. Bosson presented recent publications, ongoing prehospital research studies, and data 
collaborative projects. 
 
Recent Publications:  

 

• Implementation of Targeted Temperature Management After Out-of-Hospital Cardiac Arrest 
(OHCA) in LA County was published in the Journal of the American Heart Association 

• Utility of Glucose Testing and Treatment of Hypoglycemia in Patients with OHCA 

• The Effectiveness of Intranasal Midazolam for the Treatment of Prehospital Pediatric 
Seizures 

 
Ongoing Prehospital Research Studies: 
 

• Extracorporeal Membrane Oxygenation (ECMO) pilot identifies patients in the field with 
refractory ventricular fibrillation cardiac arrest and transports those patients to the closest 
ECMO-capable center.  The pilot was placed on hold due to the COVID-19 surge; however, 
the pilot will resume on April 27, 2021. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

• Non-Transport Quality Improvement (QI) project involves a group of residents and EMTs who 
reach out to patients who have declined transportation to the hospital to explore the rationale 
for declination and to follow-up on their current status 

• A pilot project that focuses on the use of iGel as a supraglottic airway in patients in the 
prehospital care setting will be launched in June 2021 

 
Data Collaborative Projects: 
 

• STEMI Receiving Center (SRC), Stroke, and Trauma Collaboratives have several ongoing 
projects that look at the impact of COVID-19 on the specialty care centers 

• SRC Collaborative presented the variation in post OHCA management at American Heart 
Association 2019, Stroke Collaborative published the study of the impact of changing to a 
two-tier system, and the BEST-Mobile Stroke Unit (MSU) Study was presented at 
International Stroke Conference 2021 

• The Southern California Trauma Consortium have several studies in the planning stages 
such as research on imaging for pregnant trauma patients and a preliminary proposal grant 
for funding was submitted to research the use of intramuscular versus intravenous 
tranexamic acid (TXA) for hemorrhagic shock 

• The pediatric group is currently working on the data collection tool used for pediatric OHCA.  
There are two future projects in place: Pedi Dose which looks at fixed aged-based dosing for 
pediatric seizures and Pedi Part which will study the best airway management for pediatric 
patients in the prehospital setting 
 

5.3 COVID-19 Data Reports (Richard Tadeo) 
  

Richard Tadeo presented the most current Hospital COVID Assessment and Provider Impression 
(PI) weekly reports to the committee.  The Hospital COVID Assessment report shows that the 
bed utilization and hospital census has dropped within the last couple of weeks for COVID and 
suspected COVID patients.  The PI report provides a comparison of 2019-2021 data for PI’s 
related to COVID and non-COVID.  Both reports are updated weekly and are available on the LA 
County EMS Agency website. 

 
5.4 Annual Data Report Draft (Richard Tadeo) 
 

A draft of the Annual Data Report was sent electronically to the all the committee members on 
March 31, 2021.  Richard Tadeo proposed that the next Annual Data Report focuses on the 
comparison of 2020 and 2021 data.  The committee agreed that 2019 data should not be 
excluded to demonstrate trends, that EMS times continue to be presented, and to incorporate 
COVID-19 reports in the next report.  The committee suggested that Ambulance Patient Offload 
Times (APOT) and EMS Response versus Transport versus Non-Transport times be presented 
in the Annual Data Report.  Due to the delays in data submission from the larger providers, 
APOT reporting will be deferred for now and Richard Tadeo will explore the data for non-
transports to see if this request can be granted.  If CF/CI submits their 2020 data, sample APOT 
reports will be presented to the committee at the next meeting.   

 
6. NEXT MEETING:  June 9, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. via Zoom 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 10:51 am by Commissioner Rollman. 



County of Los Angeles      
     Department of Health Services 

  EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES COMMISSION 
PROVIDER AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 

Wednesday, April 21, 2021 

Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and to comply with the Health Officer’s Order on Social 
Distancing, this meeting was conducted via ZOOM conference call-in.  General public and Committee 
Members’ attendance was verified by presence of name on the participant list. Quorum was reached and 
the meeting continued.

MEMBERSHIP / ATTENDANCE 
MEMBERS  ORGANIZATION EMS AGENCY STAFF (Virtual) 
 Robert Ower, Chair EMSC, Commissioner Marianne Gausche-Hill, MD Cathy Chidester 
 Kenneth Powell, Vice-Chair EMSC, Commissioner Nichole Bosson, MD Richard Tadeo 
 Gene Harris EMSC, Commissioner Denise Whitfield, MD Dipesh Patel, MD 
 Paul Rodriguez EMSC, Commissioner Jennifer Calderon Chris Clare 
 Brian Bixler EMSC, Commissioner Elaine Forsyth Natalie Greco 
 John Hisserich EMSC, Commissioner Cathlyn Jennings Susan Mori 
 Sean Stokes Area A Lorrie Perez Christy Preston 
 Justin Crosson Area A, Alt.     (Rep to Med Council, Alt) Laurie Lee-Brown Sara Rasnake  

 Dustin Robertson Area B Jacqueline Riffenburg Karen Rodgers 
 Clayton Kazan, MD Area B, Alt. John Telmos Gary Watson 
 Victoria Hernandez Area B, Alt.     (Rep to Med Council)  David Wells Michelle Williams 

 Todd Tucker Area C Christine Zaiser Laura Leyman  
 Lyn Riley Area C, Alt. PUBLIC ATTENDEES (Virtual) 

 Ivan Orloff Area E Christina Eclarino LA County Public Health 
 Kurt Buckwalter Area E, Alt. Paula LeFarge LACoFD 

Wade Haller Area F Andrew Roel Culver City FD 
 Brenda Bridwell Area F, Alt. Luis Manjarrez  Glendale FD 

 Alec Miller Area G           (Rep to BHAC) Matthew Armstrong Guardian Ambulance 
 Jennifer Nulty Area G, Alt.    (Rep to BHAC, Alt.) Marc Cohen, MD Three area FDs 

 Doug Zabilski Area H       Andrew Reno Long Beach FD 
 Anthony Hardaway Area H, Alt. Todd McClung  REACH Air Medical 
 Matthew Potter Area H, Alt.     (Rep to DAC) Kristina Crews  LACoFD 

 Julian Hernandez Employed Paramedic Coordinator  Britney Alton  Burbank FD 
 Tisha Hamilton Employed Paramedic Coordinator, Alt. Catherine Borman Santa Monica FD 

 Rachel Caffey Prehospital Care Coordinator Roger Braum  Culver City FD 
 Jenny Van Slyke Prehospital Care Coordinator, Alt.  Craig Hammond  Glendale FD 

 Andrew Respicio Public Sector Paramedic  Samuel Mistry, MD Several Private Providers 
 Daniel Dobbs Public Sector Paramedic, Alt. S. Gradney Beverly Hills FD 

 Maurice Guillen Private Sector Paramedic Adrienne Roel Culver City FD 
 Scott Buck Private Sector Paramedic, Alt. Jack Ewell Los Angeles Co. Sheriff 

 Ashley Sanello, MD Provider Agency Medical Director Caroline Jack Beverly Hills FD 
 Vacant Provider Agency Medical Director, Alt.  Aspen Di-Ilolo Monterey Park FD 

 Andrew Lara Private Sector Nurse Staffed Ambulance Program   Jeff Tsay San Marino FD 
 Gary Cevello Private Sector Nurse Staffed Ambulance Program, Alt. CJ Bartholomew Care Ambulance 

 Michael Kaduce EMT Training Program Drew Bernard Emergency Ambulance 
 Scott Jaeggi EMT Training Program, Alt. Alex Wilkie MedCoast Amb 

 David Mah Paramedic Training Program Simon Concepcion 
 David Fillip Paramedic Training Program, Alt. Tom Phelps  

Benjamin Esparza 
Joe Nakagawa 
Richard Petachenko 
Jeff Rollman 
Tyler Leppek 

LACAA – Los Angeles County Ambulance Association     LAAFCA – Los Angeles Area Fire Chiefs Association      BHAC – Base Hospital Advisory Committee       DAC – Data Advisory Committee

2.3 COMMITTEE REPORTS



PAAC Minutes 04.21.2021 - 2 - 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  1:02 p.m.: Chair, Robert Ower, called meeting to order. 
 

2. INTRODUCTIONS / ANNOUNCEMENTS / PRESENTATIONS 
 

2.1 Area C, New Representatives 
Chairman Ower welcomed the following new members to the Committee: 
• Todd Tucker, EMS Battalion Chief, Glendale Fire Department: Area C Representative. 
• Lyn Riley, UCLA Center for Prehospital Care: Area C Representative, Alternate. 

 
2.2 ALS Unit Ride-Along (Jacqueline Rifenburg) 

In mid-March 2021, the EMS Agency sent out an email inquiry to all public providers, 
asking if their department has resumed ride-a-longs for paramedic interns, MICNs, etc. If 
your department has not replied yet, please provide a response so this information can 
be relayed to the base hospitals.  Also, please notify the EMS Agency if your ride-a-long 
status/restrictions have changed. 
 

2.3 Side Walk CPR (Susan Mori) 
• The EMS Agency sent the following “Hands Only CPR” video link to all providers and 

would like providers to share this video with your community: https://youtu.be/jHaicno95sk 
• Issues/problems with the link, can be directed to Susan Mori, sumori@dhs.lacounty.gov. 

 
2.4 General Public Ambulance Rates – Adjustment (John Telmos) 

Annual rate adjustments will go into effect July 1, 2021 and has been sent out to all providers 
and City Managers.  A listing of these rate adjustments will be posted on the EMS Agency’s 
webpage. 

 
2.5 EMSAAC Conference 2021 (Richard Tadeo) 

This year’s Emergency Medical Services Administrator’s Association (EMSAAC) conference 
is scheduled for June 2 and 3, 2021.  Registration information can be found at the following 
weblink: https://www.emsaac.org/conference 
 

2.6 Mental Health Emergencies (Cathy Chidester) 
Ms. Chidester presented information on the joint efforts between Department of Mental 
Health and three various committees. This joint project involved the exploration of various 
ways to respond to the mental health crisis’ within Los Angeles County; and involved the 
roles of dispatch centers and use of alternate destinations. 
A Draft document was presented and reviewed entitled “Behavioral Health Crisis Triage” that 
would be utilized as a guideline for dispatch centers. 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (Tucker/Commissioner Hisserich) February 17, 2021 minutes  
 were approved as written. 

 
4. REPORTS & UPDATES 
 

4.1 COVID-19 Update (Marianne Gausche-Hill, MD) 
• Number of positive COVID-19 cases in Los Angeles County continue to trend downward. 
• Currently, the COVID-19 vaccine is being offered to any adult over the age of 18. 

And there are over 500 vaccination sites in the County. 
 

4.2 OB Kits Carried on BLS/ALS Units (Marianne Gausche-Hill, MD) 
The EMS Agency is exploring various methods to address the concern of neonates 
arriving into the emergency departments in a hypothermic state. Committee members 
made recommendation on various items such as additional towels, beanies, warm 
packs, etc. Discussion and feedback were appreciated. 

    

https://youtu.be/jHaicno95sk
mailto:sumori@dhs.lacounty.gov
https://www.emsaac.org/conference


PAAC Minutes 04.21.2021 - 3 - 

 
4.3 Disaster Services (Jennifer Calderon) 

• COVID-19 Vaccination: Several fire departments and the Sheriff’s Department have 
been working with Department of Public Health and hospitals in assisting those 65 
years old and older, who are home-bound disabled population, in receiving their 
COVID-19 vaccine. 

• Influenza Season: This year will be the first year EMS providers will be required to 
report their influenza data to the EMS Agency on behalf of Public Health. The 
Influenza vaccination survey will be sent out at the beginning of May 2021 and a 
response deadline will be May 31st. 
 

4.4 EMS Update 2021 (Denise Whitfield, MD) 
• Train-the-Trainer sessions are planned for April 29 and May 6, 2021. 
• Information regarding these sessions will be emailed to those who have pre-

registered. 
• Topics include: Out of Hospital Cardiac Arrests (adult and pediatric; and traumatic); 

Reference 834, Assess, Treat and Refer; QI modules on anaphylaxis and sepsis.  
 

4.5 ITAC Update (Denise Whitfield, MD) 
• Previous meeting was held on February 1, 2021. 
• Committee reviewed a child restraint device, a CPR feedback device and a 

prehospital integration software.   
 

4.6 EmergiPress Update (Denise Whitfield, MD) 
• New topics will be posted on the EMS Agency’s webpage by the end of the month 

and include opioid overdose; Reference No. 1337 (Leave Behind Naloxone), 
electrocardiogram (ECG) review and multi-casualty incidents (MCIs). 

• Providers were reminded that there is a program that supplies providers with free 
naloxone that providers can distribute to the at-risk person as a harm reduction 
measure. (See Reference 1337 for more information) 

 
  4.7 Measure B Funded Learning Modules (Denise Whitfield, MD) 

• After receiving Measure B funding, Mark Malonzo from UCLA has put together 
learning modules that are available at no cost.  

• Topics include adult traumatic brain injury, spinal motion restriction, mechanical 
circulatory devices, capnography, and behavioral/psychiatric emergencies.  

• Those interested in this free continuing education opportunity may contact Mr. 
Malonzo at mmalonzo@mednet.ucla.edu 

 
  4.8 ECMO Update (Nicole Bosson, MD) 

• Due to the lower number of COVID-19 cases, this pilot has resumed as of today 
 (April 21, 2021).  Notifications were sent to hospitals and providers.   
• This pilot will resume for Culver City, Beverly Hills and Los Angeles County Fire 

Departments that who can transport to participating ECMO hospitals (Cedars-Sinai 
Medical Center or Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center). 

• In addition, the ECMO pilot will be expanding on May 3, 2021 to include Los Angeles 
Fire Department and LAC+USC Medical Center. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:mmalonzo@mednet.ucla.edu


PAAC Minutes 04.21.2021 - 4 - 

 
 4.9 Bag-Valve-Mask: Sizes (Nicole Bosson, MD) 

• Based on literature review, Los Angeles County will be requiring specific volume 
amounts of each ventilation bag sizes. Specific bag volumes include: 
 Infant - 200-400 mL 
 Pediatric - 400-700 mL 
 Adult - 650-1000 mL 

• This change will affect all inventory policies.  Mask sizes will not change.  
• Implementation of this change will be determined and announced at a later date. 

 
4.10 Indications for Nitroglycerin (Nicole Bosson, MD) 

Reminder to all providers: Nitroglycerin is specifically indicated for active chest pain 
and not be given to a patient whose chest pain has resolved.  (See Reference No. 
1211, Cardiac Chest Pain) 

 
4.11 Reference No. 1335, Medical Control Guideline: Needle Thoracostomy  
  (Marianne Gausche-Hill, MD) 

Medical Director reviewed policy changes, addressing needle thoracostomy placement 
specific to the pediatric patient.   

 
5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
There was no unfinished business. 
 

6 NEW BUSINESS 
      

6.1 Reference No. 503, Guidelines for Hospitals Requesting Diversion of ALS/BLS Patients 
 (Richard Tadeo) 

 
   Policy reviewed and approved as written.  

 
M/S/C (Zabilski/Haller) Approved Reference No. 503, Guidelines for Hospitals 
Requesting Diversion of ALS/BLS Patients. 
 

6.2 Reference No. 503.1, Diversion Request Requirements for Emergency Department Saturation 
(Richard Tadeo) 

 
  Policy reviewed and approved as written. 
 

M/S/C (Zabilski/Haller) Approved Reference No. 503.1, Diversion Request 
Requirements for Emergency Department Saturation. 
 

6.3 Reference No. 815, Honoring Prehospital Do Not Resuscitate Orders, Physician 
Orders for Life Sustaining Treatment and End of Life Option (Aid-In-Dying Drug) 
(Nicole Bosson, MD) 

 
    Policy reviewed and approved as written. 
 

M/S/C (Orloff/Zabilski) Approved Reference No. 815, Honoring Prehospital Do Not 
Resuscitate Orders, Physician Orders for Life Sustaining Treatment and End of Life 
Option (Aid-In-Dying Drug). 

 
   6.4 Reference No. 816, Physician at The Scene (Marianne Gausche-Hill, MD) 
 
    Policy reviewed and approved as written.  
 



PAAC Minutes 04.21.2021 - 5 - 

M/S/C (Zabilski/Haller) Approved Reference No. 816, Physician at The Scene. 
7. OPEN DISCUSSION 

 
No Open Discussion. 

 
8. NEXT MEETING:  June 16, 2021 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT: Meeting adjourned at 2:28 p.m. 



5/4/2021 Los Angeles County, CA Code of Ordinances

1/5

A.

B.

A.

B.

C.

Chapter 3.20 - EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES COMMISSION

Footnotes:

--- (2) ---

Note— For statutory provisions on county emergency medical care committees, see Health & Safety Code § 1750 et seq.

Editor's note— Ordinance 12332, passed April 7, 1981, entirely amended the provisions of Ord. 4099 Art. 107, the

emergency medical services commission, with the effect of discontinuing six sections. Legislative history for the discontinued

sections includes:

20505a Ords. 12023 § 3 (part), 1979; 12040 § 1 (part), 1979.

20509 to 20511 Ords. 11179 § 1 (part), 1975; 12023 § 3 (part), 1979;

12040 § 1 (part), 1979; 12201 § 1 (part), 1980.

20512 Ords. 12023 § 3 (part), 1979; 12040 § 1 (part), 1979;

12201 § 1 (part), 1980.

3.20.010 - Continuation—Composition.

The Los Angeles County emergency medical services commission, which shall be referred to in

this chapter as the "commission," is continued in accordance with California Health and Safety

Code Sections 1751 and 1752.

The commission shall have 19 positions. A member of the commission shall be appointed to a

vacant position by, and serve at the pleasure of, the board of supervisors, which shall be referred

to in this chapter as the "board."

(Ord. 2011-0062 § 1, 2011: Ord. 90-0086 § 12(a), 1990: Ord. 12332 § 1 (part), 1981: Ord. 12201 § 1 (part),

1980: Ord. 12040 § 1 (part), 1979: Ord. 12023 § 3 (part), 1979: Ord. 11179 § 1 (part), 1975: Ord. 4099 Art. 107

§ 20501, 1942.)

3.20.020 - Length of service—Vacancy.

Each member of the commission shall serve a term of four years at the pleasure of the board.

No member of the commission may serve more than two consecutive full periods of service as

specified in subsection A of this section. The board may, by order, extend this length of service or

waive this limit for individuals or the commission as a whole.

A member's position on the commission shall become vacant upon his or her death, resignation,

4.5 BUSINESS (NEW)



5/4/2021 Los Angeles County, CA Code of Ordinances

2/5

D.

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

H.

I.

J.

K.

L.

M.

N.

O.

or removal by the board. In the case of such a vacancy, the board shall appoint a successor to

serve until the position next becomes vacant under subsection A of this section.

The provisions of Chapter 5.12 of the County Code shall not apply to the commission.

(Ord. 2011-0062 § 2, 2011: Ord. 90-0086 § 12(b), 1990: Ord. 12332 § 1 (part) 1981: Ord. 12201 § 1 (part),

1980: Ord. 12040 § 1 (part), 1979: Ord. 12023 § 3 (part), 1979: Ord. 11179 § 1 (part), 1975: Ord. 4099 Art. 107

§ 20502, 1942.)

3.20.040 - Composition.

The commission shall be composed as follows:

An emergency medical care physician in a paramedic base hospital nominated by the California

Chapter of the American College of Emergency Physicians;

A cardiologist nominated by the American Heart Association, Western States Affiliate;

A mobile intensive care nurse nominated by the California Chapter of the Emergency Department

Nurses Association;

A hospital administrator nominated by the Healthcare Association of Southern California;

A representative of a public provider agency nominated by the Los Angeles Chapter of California

Fire Chiefs Association;

A representative of a private provider agency nominated by the Los Angeles County Ambulance

Association;

A trauma surgeon who practices in Los Angeles County at a designated trauma center nominated

by the Southern California Chapter American College of Surgeons;

A psychiatrist nominated by the Southern California Psychiatric Society;

A physician nominated by the Los Angeles County Medical Association;

A licensed paramedic nominated by the California State Firefighters Association, Emergency

Medical Services Committee;

Five public members, one nominated by each member of the Board of Supervisors. No public

member shall be a medical professional or affiliated with any of the other nominating agencies;

A law enforcement representative nominated initially by the California Highway Patrol. After the

first term of office for this position is completed, the law enforcement representative shall be

nominated by the Los Angeles County Peace Officers Association;

A city manager nominated by the League of California Cities, Los Angeles County Chapter;

A police chief nominated by the Los Angeles County Police Chiefs Association;

A representative nominated by the Southern California Public Health Association.

https://library.municode.com/


5/4/2021 Los Angeles County, CA Code of Ordinances

3/5

A.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

(Ord. 2016-0008 § 1, 2016: Ord. 2011-0062 § 3, 2011: Ord. 2008-0006 § 1, 2008: Ord. 99-0027 § 1, 1999: Ord.

12332 § 1 (part), 1981: Ord. 12201 § 1 (part), 1980: Ord. 12040 § 1 (part), 1979: Ord. 12023 § 3 (part), 1979:

Ord. 11179 § 1 (part), 1975: Ord. 4099 Art. 107 § 20504, 1942.)

3.20.050 - Compensation.

The members of the commission shall serve without compensation.

(Ord. 12332 § 1 (part), 1981: Ord. 12201 § 1 (part), 1980: Ord. 12040 § 1 (part), 1979: Ord. 12023 § 3 (part),

1979: Ord. 11179 § 1 (part), 1975; Ord. 4099 Art. 107 § 20506, 1942.)

3.20.060 - Chairperson.

The chairperson shall be appointed by the commission members in accordance with the commission's rules

and regulations.

(Ord. 12332 § 1 (part), 1981: Ord. 12201 § 1 (part), 1980: Ord. 12040 § 1 (part), 1979: Ord. 12023 § 3 (part),

1979: Ord. 4099 Art. 107 § 20505a, 1942.)

3.20.070 - Functions and duties.

The commission shall perform all of the functions of the emergency medical care committee as

defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 1750, et seq., and shall have the following duties:

To act in an advisory capacity to the board of supervisors and the director of health services

regarding county policies, programs, and standards for emergency medical care services

throughout the county, including paramedic services;

To establish appropriate criteria for evaluation and to conduct continuous evaluation on the

basis of these criteria of the impact and quality of emergency medical care services

throughout the county;

To conduct studies of particular elements of the emergency medical care system as

requested by the board of supervisors, the director of health services or on its own initiative;

to delineate problems and deficiencies and to recommend appropriate solutions;

To acquire and analyze the information necessary for measuring the impact and the quality of

emergency medical care services;

To report its finding, conclusions, and recommendations to the board of supervisors at least

every 12 months;

To review and comment on plans and proposals for emergency medical care services

prepared by county departments;

To recommend, when the need arises, that the county engage independent contractors for

the performance of specialized temporary or occasional services to the commission which



5/4/2021 Los Angeles County, CA Code of Ordinances

4/5

8.

a.

b.

9.

B.

cannot be performed by members of the classified service, and for which the county

otherwise has the authority to contract;

To advise the department of health service and its director on the following matters:

Policies, procedures, and standards to control the certification of mobile intensive care

nurses and paramedics;

Proposals of any public or private organization to initiate or modify a program of

paramedic services or training;

To arbitrate differences in the field of paramedic services and training between all sectors of

the community, including, but not limited to, county agencies, municipalities, public safety

agencies, community colleges, hospitals, private companies, and physicians.

A decision of the commission regarding a matter which the commission hears under its

arbitration function pursuant to subparagraph 9 hereinabove will be final and binding upon the

parties who appeared before the commission on the matter unless the board of supervisors at

any time promulgates policy which is inconsistent with such determination. Further, the

commission shall refer to the board of supervisors and any other affected provider agency any

such decision of the commission which will either affect the budget of the county, or any other

provider agency, for the paramedic program, or operate to change an existing county-approved

policy. Such decision shall not become final and binding unless adopted by the board of

supervisors. Additionally, any such decision of the commission shall be advisory only if its

implementation will affect any county paramedic program matter which the county health officer,

the local emergency medical services agency, or board of supervisors has power to regulate

pursuant to Health and Safety Code Sections 1480, et seq., and Health and Safety Code Sections

1797.200, et seq.

(Ord. 12332 § 1 (part), 1981: Ord. 12201 § 1 (part), 1980: Ord. 12040 § 1 (part), 1979: Ord. 12023 § 3 (part),

1979: Ord. 11909 § 1, 1979: Ord. 11179 § 1 (part), 1975: Ord. 4099 Art. 107 § 20505, 1942.)

3.20.080 - Self-government—Meetings.

The commission shall prepare and adopt rules and regulations for the internal government of its business

and designating the time and place of holding its meetings, provided that such rules and regulations are not

inconsistent with this or any other ordinance or statute.

(Ord. 12332 § 1 (part), 1981: Ord. 12201 § 1 (part), 1980: Ord. 12040 § 1 (part), 1979: Ord. 12023 § 3 (part),

1979: Ord. 11179 § 1 (part), 1975: Ord. 4099 Art. 107 § 20507, 1942.)

3.20.090 - Sta�.

The director of health services shall provide the staff for the commission and subcommittees thereof.



5/4/2021 Los Angeles County, CA Code of Ordinances

5/5

(Ord. 12332 § 1 (part), 1981: Ord. 12201 § 1 (part), 1980: Ord. 12040 § 1 (part), 1979: Ord. 12023 § 3 (part),

1979: Ord. 11179 § 1 (part), 1975: Ord. 4099 Art. 107 § 20508, 1942.)



6.1 CORRESPONDENCE









6.2 CORRESPONDENCE



6.3 CORRESPONDENCE



6.4 CORRESPONDENCE





6.5 CORRESPONDENCE



6.6 CORRESPONDENCE

















6.7 CORRESPONDENCE



6.8 CORRESPONDENCE







6.9 CORRESPONDENCE


	0.0 EMSC Agenda 05.19.2021-Planning.Call
	COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES COMMISSION
	DATE: May 19, 2021
	Dial by your location (Use any number)
	I. CALL TO ORDER – Chairman Paul Rodriguez
	Instructions for Zoom:
	II. INTRODUCTIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS/PRESENTATIONS
	1. MINUTES
	2. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	VI. EMS DIRECTOR’S AND MEDICAL DIRECTOR’S REPORT
	CORRESPONDENCE
	5
	6.1 (03-01-2021) Angela Wise, EMS Authority: EMS System Plan Update FY 2019-20
	6.2 (03-15-2021) Chris Gordon, AMR-Inland Empire: Temporary Approval of AMR Inland Empire ALS Unit to Provide Standby ALS Coverage at State Vaccination Site
	6.3 (03-10-2021) Distribution:  COVID-19 EMS Directive #3 – Suspension of Service Area Boundaries
	6.4 (03-15-2021) Assembly Member Freddie Rodriguez: EMS and COVID-19 Vaccination Issues
	6.5 (03-15-2021) James R. West: Good Samaritan Hospital Service Area Boundaries and Ambulance Patient Offload Times
	6.6 (03-15-2021) Distribution: Submission of Measure B Funding Proposals for 2021
	6.7 (03-16-2021) Distribution: Sidewalk “Hands-Only” CPR
	6.8 (04-09-2021) Distribution: General Public Ambulance Rates July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022
	6.9 (04-15-2021) Distribution: Pacific Gardens Medical Center 9-1-1 Receiving Hospital Designation
	VII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS / REQUESTS



	0.1 EMSC Minutes 3.17.2021-Planning.Call
	Commission Liaison
	Marianne Gausche-Hill
	LAC Police Chiefs’ Assn.
	Roel Amara
	Richard Tadeo
	Kay Fruhwirth
	Cathlyn Jennings
	Christine Zaiser
	Gary Watson
	Lorrie Perez

	2.1 BHAC Meeting Minutes April 14 2021 FINAL
	2.2 DAC MINUTES 4-14-21 Final
	2.3 PAAC Minutes 2021.04.21
	2.4-4.5 Los Angeles County, CA Code of Ordinances
	03.01.21_
	03.08.21_
	03.10.21_
	03.15.21_
	03.15.21-2
	03.15.2021 MeasB Funding Proposals for 2021
	03.16.21
	04.09.21
	04.15.21



